

# MAINE STATE LEGISLATURE

The following document is provided by the  
**LAW AND LEGISLATIVE DIGITAL LIBRARY**  
at the Maine State Law and Legislative Reference Library  
<http://legislature.maine.gov/lawlib>



Reproduced from scanned originals with text recognition applied  
(searchable text may contain some errors and/or omissions)

# ACTS AND RESOLVES

AS PASSED BY THE

## Ninety-fifth Legislature

OF THE

# STATE OF MAINE

Published by the Director of Legislative Research in accordance with subsection VI of section 26 of chapter 9 of the Revised Statutes of 1944.

---

KENNEBEC JOURNAL  
AUGUSTA, MAINE  
1951

---

---

**PUBLIC LAWS**

OF THE

**STATE OF MAINE**

As Passed by the Ninety-fifth Legislature

**1951**

---

---

'Sec. 7-A. Change of purposes. Any corporation organized without capital stock may change its purposes at a legal meeting of its directors, trustees or managing board, however designated, in the manner, with the effect and subject to the provisions contained in section 71 of chapter 49 except that no fee shall be charged.'

Effective August 20, 1951

---

---

## Chapter 348

### AN ACT Clarifying the Election Laws.

*Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine, as follows:*

Sec. 1. R. S., c. 3, § 19, amended. The last sentence of section 19 of chapter 3 of the revised statutes is hereby amended to read as follows:

'Whenever a registered woman voter shall assume through marriage or any process of law a new surname, she shall notify the board or the city clerk of such change, in person, and the board shall then register her again; but when the open session for registration of voters, as hereinbefore provided has ended, and before the close of the day of election, she may present to the board a duly executed certificate of her marriage, or of her change of name by process of law, and the board shall cause her name to be changed accordingly on the voting list and the general register, and shall issue its certificate directed to the officers presiding over the election, in the same manner and with the same effect as hereinbefore provided by reason of clerical error or omission of a name from the voting list.'

Sec. 2. R. S., c. 4, § 24, amended. The 1st 2 sentences of section 24 of chapter 4 of the revised statutes are hereby amended to read as follows:

'The secretary of state shall 14 days at least prior to the day of any primary election transmit to the clerk in each city, town and plantation a ~~printed list~~ **specimen ballots** containing the name, residence and party or political appellation of each candidate proposed for nomination as herein provided for such election and to be voted for at each voting place in each such city, town and plantation respectively, substantially in the form of the ballot to be used therein; and the clerk shall immediately cause the ~~list~~ **specimen ballots** for each ward, town or plantation, as the case may be, to be conspicuously posted in one or more public places in such ward, town or plantation. The secretary of state shall likewise cause to be published prior to the day of any such election hereunder, in at least 2 newspapers in each county if there be so many printed or published therein, representing so

far as practicable the political parties which at the next preceding gubernatorial election cast the largest and the next largest number of votes, a ~~list~~ **specimen ballot** of all the nominations proposed, as herein provided and to be voted for in such county, so far as may be in the form in which they shall appear upon the general ballots.'

**Sec. 3. R. S., c. 4, § 33, amended.** The 1st sentence of section 33 of chapter 4 of the revised statutes is hereby amended to read as follows:

'Every candidate so nominated and notified shall, within 7 days after the receipt of notification, send ~~or deliver~~ to the secretary of state ~~by registered mail~~ the following acceptance.'

**Sec. 4. R. S., c. 4, § 34, amended.** Section 34 of chapter 4 of the revised statutes is hereby amended by adding after the line which reads

'Newspaper advertising §'  
the following line:

'Radio advertising §'

**Sec. 5. R. S., c. 4, § 37, amended.** The 2nd paragraph of section 37 of chapter 4 of the revised statutes is hereby amended to read as follows:

'The secretary of state shall, ~~on~~ 15 days before the date of any such election, publish in all the daily and weekly papers in the state a statement setting forth the total expenditures made in accordance with the information filed with him under the terms of the foregoing paragraph by every candidate, person, firm, association, committee, organization or corporation reporting, giving for each office a list of the parties making such expenditures and the amounts thereof, which list shall for each office be arranged alphabetically except that the names of the candidates whose names are to appear on the ballots shall be first listed under each office. The secretary of state shall revise and republish such figures ~~in each of such papers 15 days as near as may be before such election and again~~ in the daily papers of the state on the Friday immediately preceding the day of any such primary election.'

**Sec. 6. R. S., c. 5, § 2, amended.** Section 2 of chapter 5 of the revised statutes is hereby amended to read as follows:

'Sec. 2. **Specimen ballots of nominations to be transmitted to clerks of cities, towns and plantations 7 days before any election, and published.** The secretary of state shall, 7 days at least, previous to the day of any state election, transmit to the clerk in each city, town and plantation in which such election is to be held, ~~printed lists~~ **specimen ballots** containing the names, residences and party or political appellations of all candidates nominated as provided in chapter 4 for such election and to be voted for at each

voting place in each such city, town and plantation respectively, substantially in the form of the general ballot to be so used therein; and the clerks shall immediately cause the ~~lists~~ specimen ballots for each ward, town or plantation, as the case may be, to be conspicuously posted in one or more public places in such ward, town or plantation. The secretary of state shall likewise cause to be published prior to the day of any such election, in at least 2 newspapers, if there be so many printed or published in each county, representing so far as practicable, the political parties which, at the preceding election, cast the largest and next largest numbers of votes, a ~~list~~ specimen ballot of all such nominations, so far as may be, in the form in which they shall appear upon the general ballots. New nominations made or authorized shall be transmitted, posted and published promptly, and so far as practicable in the manner herein directed, and communications transmitted as herein directed by the secretary of state to any clerk shall be duplicated on the succeeding day.'

Sec. 7. R. S., c. 6, § 2, sub-§ IV, repealed and replaced. Subsection IV of section 2 of chapter 6 of the revised statutes is hereby repealed and the following enacted in place thereof:

‘IV. Envelopes of sufficient size to contain the ballots specified in subsection I, addressed to the clerk of the city or town of \_\_\_\_\_, county of \_\_\_\_\_, state of Maine having at the top blank spaces for the name, voting residence, and voting place of the sender with the words “Name,” “Voting Residence,” “Ward,” and “Precinct” appropriately printed thereon and the following affidavit:

“I, \_\_\_\_\_, do solemnly swear that I am unable to cast my ballot on election day at the voting place where I am entitled to vote because I shall be absent on the day of election, or prevented from going to the polls due to physical incapacity on the day of election (strike out reason not applicable). I have carefully read the instructions on the reverse side of this envelope and have marked my ballot in accordance with them.

(Signature) .....

I hereby certify that the above statements made by said affiant are true to the best of my knowledge and belief.

(Official seal, if any.)

Name .....  
 Residence .....  
 Official Title ....."

Such envelopes shall bear on their reverse side instructions as to the manner of voting.’

Sec. 8. R. S., c. 6, § 2, sub-§ VI, repealed and replaced. Subsection VI of section 2 of chapter 6 of the revised statutes is hereby repealed and the following enacted in place thereof:

'VI. Envelopes of sufficient size to contain the ballot and the return envelope mentioned in subsection IV bearing on the face thereof "From the Clerk of \_\_\_\_\_" with appropriate lines for the address of the voter.'

Sec. 9. R. S., c. 6, § 6-A, amended. Section 6-A of chapter 6 of the revised statutes, as enacted by section 2 of chapter 146 of the public laws of 1947, is hereby amended to read as follows:

'Sec. 6-A. Procedure in towns and plantations. ~~When an application for an absent voting ballot or physical incapacity voting ballot is received by a clerk of a town or plantation, he shall forthwith mail or deliver the ballot to the applicant.~~ When a written request for an absent voting ballot or physical incapacity voting ballot is received by a clerk of a town or plantation, he shall forthwith mail or deliver the application and ballot to the applicant; provided, however, that if the request is made on the form prescribed by subsection III of section 2, then he shall mail or deliver only the ballot. Before the ~~opening~~ closing of the polls on election day, the clerk shall deliver to the officials charged by law with the registration and enrolment of voters in such town or plantation all applications for absent voting and physical incapacity voting ballots which have been received by him. Said officials shall examine each application and if they believe the signature thereon to be genuine and the statements therein made by the applicant to be true, they shall execute the certificate thereon and return it to the clerk. If the officials do not believe the signature to be genuine or the statements made by the applicant to be true, and so decline to execute the certificate, they shall forthwith mail to the applicant at his address as stated on his application written notice to that effect, giving their reasons for so declining and informing him that his ballot will not be counted. They shall preserve the application until the time set by law for the destruction of ballots cast in the coming election, at which time the application shall also be destroyed. The clerk shall cause to be placed on the voting list, opposite the name of each person to whom an official absent voting ballot or physical incapacity voting ballot is mailed or delivered ~~and whose application has been certified as herein set forth prior to the opening of the polls on election day,~~ the letters in capitals A. V.'

Sec 10. R. S., c. 6, § 7, amended. Section 7 of chapter 6 of the revised statutes, as amended, is hereby further amended by adding at the end thereof a new paragraph, to read as follows:

'Any voter, voting in accordance with the provisions of the preceding paragraph and who is unable to mark his ballot due to blindness or other physical incapacity, may request the official who is authorized by law to administer oaths to mark the ballot for him in accordance with his instructions.'

Effective August 20, 1951

---

---

## Chapter 349

### AN ACT Relating to Conditional Sales Agreements.

*Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine, as follows:*

R. S., c. 106, § 8, amended. Section 8 of chapter 106 of the revised statutes is hereby amended by adding at the end thereof a new paragraph, to read as follows:

'Such agreement as provided in the preceding paragraph shall be binding upon a husband only when signed by him. Any person who permits a wife to sign her husband's name to any such agreement without his written authority to do so, when such person is acting as the other party thereto, or as his agent, shall be punished by a fine of not more than \$1,000, or by imprisonment for not more than 11 months, or by both such fine and imprisonment.'

Effective August 20, 1951

---

---

## Chapter 350

### AN ACT Relating to Open Season for Hunting Deer with Bow and Arrow.

*Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine, as follows:*

R. S., c. 33, §§ 96-A - 96-E, additional. Chapter 33 of the revised statutes, as revised, is hereby amended by adding thereto 5 new sections, to be numbered 96-A to 96-E, inclusive, to read as follows:

#### 'Hunting with Bow and Arrow

Sec. 96-A. Open season. There shall be an annual open season on deer in the counties of Franklin and Somerset from October 1st to October 15th, inclusive, for the purpose of hunting deer with bow and arrow only.

Sec. 96-B. License; tags. An archery license shall be issued by the commissioner to take deer under the provisions of sections 96-A to 96-E,